
REPORT OF 

CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 



CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets 

Government-Wide Statement of Activities 

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental 
Funds to the Statelnent of Net Assets 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds to the 
Statement of Activities 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
Balances - Budget and Actual - General Fund 

Statement of Net Assets - Proprietary Funds 

Statement of Operating Revenues, Operating Expenses and 
Changes in Fund Net Assets - Proprietary Funds 

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds 

Statement of Net Assets and Liabilities - Fiduciary Funds 

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets - Fiduciary Funds 

Notes to Financial Statelnents 

1-2 

3-9 

10 

11-12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20-21 

22 

23 

24-53 



CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 

TABLE OF CONTENTS (CONT'D) 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Schedule of Funding Progress 

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Combining Balance Sheet - Nomnajor Governmental Funds 

COlnbining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 
in Fund Balances - Nonlnajor Governlnental Funds 

STATISTICAL DATA 

Insurance Coverage 

Water and Waste Water Utility Revenue Bonds Outstanding 

Customers in Service - Water and Waste Water 

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and On Compliance 
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statelnents Perfonned 
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

Schedule of Findings and Responses 

54 

55 

56 

57-58 

59 

60 

61-62 

63-64 



GERDING, KORTE & CHITWOOD 

Professional Corporation 

Certified Public Accountants 

723 Main St. 

P.O. Box 81 

Boonville, MO 65233 

(660) 882-7000 

Fax: (660) 882-7765 

www.gkccpas.com 

PARTNERS 

Robert A. Gerding 

Fred W Korte, Jr. 

Joseph E. Chitwood 

James R. McGinnis 

Travis W Hundley 

MEMBERS OF AMERICAN INSTITUTE 
OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Honorable Mayor and Members 
of the Board of Aldennen 

City of Montgomery, Missouri 

We have audited the accOlnpanying financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information, of the City of Montgomery, Missouri (the "City"), as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the City's 
basic financial statements, as listed in the table of contents. These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our respons~bility is 
to express opinions on these financial statements based on our' audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perfonn 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An 
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for 
our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, 
the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the City as of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in financial 
position and cash flows, where applicable and the respective budgetary 
comparisons for the General Fund for the year then ended in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 



In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a repoli dated February 
2, 2012 on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an 
opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should 
be considered in assessing the results of our audit. 

As described in Note I-M to the financial statements, the City has adopted the provisions of 
Governmental Accountings Standards Board Statement 54, Fund Balance Reporting and 
Governmental Fund type Definitions, in fiscal year 2011. 

The management's discussion and analysis and the schedule of funding progress (on pages 3 - 9 
and page 54) are not a required part of the basic financial statelnents, but are supplementary 
information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
We have applied certain litnited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of 
managelnent regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required 
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion 
on it. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The combining financial statements 
and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part 
of the basic financial statements. The combining financial statements have been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statelnents and, in our opinion, are 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
The statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 

February 2, 2012 Celiified Public Accountants 
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 
(UNAUDITED) 

As management of the City of Montgomery, Missouri, we offer readers of the City's financial 
statement this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2011. The City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and 
Analysis - for State and Local Governments, for the first time for fiscal year 2004. Statelnent 34 
allows for prospective reporting of general infrastructure effective with the year beginning July 1, 
2003. 

Financial Highlights 

The assets of the City of Montgomery exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent 
fiscal year by $8,151,142 (net assets). Of this mnount, $1,437,253 (unrestricted net 
assets) may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors 
in accordance with the City's fund designation and fiscal policies. 

The City's total net assets increased by $319,518. Capital grants and contributions from 
developers increased the net assets by $342,806. 

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Montgomery's governmental funds 
reported combined ending fund balances of $542,170. Of this amount $(9,636) 
is unassigned and available for use within the City's designation and policies. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was 
$60,573 or 30/0 of the total general fund expenditures. 

The City's revenue bonds payable decreased $292,924 due to scheduled payments. 

The City's capital lease debt decreased $66,827 due to scheduled paYlnents of $66,827. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial 
statelnents. The City's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) 
government-wide financial statelnents, 2) fund financial statements and 3) notes to the financial 
statements. This report also contains other supplementary infonnation in addition to the basic 
financial statements themselves. 

Government-wide financial statements - The government-wide financial statements are 
designed to provide readers with the broad overview of the City's finances, in a manner silnilar to 
private-sector business. 

3 



CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 
(UNAUDITED) 

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets 
may serve as a useful indicator to whether the financial position of the City is improving or 
deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City's net assets changed 
during the fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported when the underlying event giving 
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and 
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in the 
future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused compensated absences). 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) froin 
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and 
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City include general 
governinent and administration, public safety, transportation, cultural, parks and recreation and 
community development. The business-type activities of the City include Electric, Water, Sewer, 
Airport and Water and Light Special operations. The government-wide financial stateinents can 
be found on page 10-12 of this report. 

Fund financial statements - A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain 
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, 
like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided 
into two categories - governmental funds and proprietary funds. 

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same 
functions reported as governmental activities in the governinent-wide financial stateinents. 
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, goverrunental fund financial 
statements focus on current sources and uses of spendable resources, as well as on balances of 
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such infonnation may be useful in 
evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of the governinental funds is narrower than that of the governinent-wide 
financial stateinents, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental activities 
in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the 
long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental 
funds balance sheet and the governmental fund statements of revenues, expenditures, and changes 
in fund balances provides a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental 
funds and governmental activities. 
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 
(UNAUDITED) 

The City maintains eight governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the 
Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and in the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for the General fund which is considered to be a 
major fund. Data from the other funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. 
Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the fonn of 
combining statements elsewhere in this report. The basic governmental funds financial 
statements can be found on pages 13 -1 7. 

Proprietary Funds - The City Inaintains two types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are 
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide 
financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water and wastewater, 
sewer, airport, and gas operations. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the governlnent-wide financial 
statelnents, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate 
information for the water, wastewater and gas funds since they are considered to be major funds of 
the City. The basic proprietary fund financial statelnents can be found on pages 18-21 of this 
report. 

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary fund statements provide information about the financial 
relationships, like the Employee Deferred Compensation Fund, in which the City acts solely as a 
trustee or agent for the benefit of others, to whom the resources in question belong. 

Notes to the Financial Statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential to a 
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 
The notes to the financial statelnents can be found on pages 24-53. 

Other Information - In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this 
report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City's progress in 
funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required supplementary 
information can be found on page 54 of this report. 

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds 
are presented following the required supplementary information on pensions. Combining and 
individual statements and schedules can be found on pages 55-56 of this report. 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net assets Inay serve over tilne as a useful indicator of government's financial 
position. In the case of the City of Montgomery, assets exceeded liabilities by $8,151,142 
as of June 30, 201l. 
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 
(UNAUDITED) 

The largest portion of the City's net assets (56.8%) reflects its investments in capital assets (e.g., 
land, building, equipment, improvements and construction in progress), less any debt used to 
acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide service 
to citizens; consequently these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's 
investments in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources 
needed to repay this debt must be provided frOlll other sources, since the capital assets themselves 
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

NET ASSETS 

The following table provides a sUlllmary of the City's net assets at June 30, 2011, with 
comparative figures for June 30, 2010: 

Governmental B usiness-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 
$ 1,625,352 $ 1,567,083 $ 1,357,432 $ 1,307,971 $ 2,982,784 $ 

17,631 13,890 2,033,287 2,223,863 2,050,918 

2010 
2,875,054 
2,237,753 

Current assets 
Restri cted assets 
Capital assets 2,157,332 2,032,815 8,078,578 8,338,992 10,235,910 10,371,807 

Total Assets 3,800,315 3,613,788 11,469,297 11,870,826 15,269,612 15,484,614 

Current liabilities 
Long-term liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Net assets 
Invested in capital assets, 
net of related debt 

Restricted 

1,073,571 
471,737 

1,545,308 

1,726,855 
293,619 
234,533 

1,083,479 
480,628 

1,564,107 

1,530,769 
31,669 

487,243 

665,109 
4,908,053 
5,573,162 

2,837,636 
1,855,779 
1,202,720 

841,616 
5,247,267 
6,088,883 

2,615,655 
2,015,410 
1,150,878 

1,738,680 
5,379,790 
7,118,470 

4,564,491 
2,149,398 
1,437,253 

1,925,095 
5,727,895 
7,652,990 

4,146,424 
2,047,079 
1,638,121 Unrestricted 

Total Net Assets $ 2,255,007 $ 2,049,681 $ 5,896,135 $ 5,781,943 $ 8,151,142 $ 7,831,624 

As of June 30, 2011, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net assets 
for the government as a whole. 

Analysis of the City's Operations - Overall the City had an increase in net assets of $319,518. 

Governmental Activities: Governmental activities increased the net assets by $205,326. 

Business-type Activities: Net Assets from business-type activities increased by $114,192 or 2.00/0 
from $5,781,943 to $5,896,135. 
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 
(UNAUDITED) 

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

The following table provides a summary of the City's operations for the year ended June 30, 2011, 
with comparative figures for the year ended June 30, 201O. 

Govemmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 
Revenues: 
Program Revenues: 

Fees, fines and 
charges for services $ 477,921 $ 450,631 $ 1,863,033 $ 1,837,374 $ 2,340,954 $ 2,288,005 

Operating grants 
and contributions 36,569 31,535 36,569 3L535 
Capital grants 
and contributions 342,806 24,700 342,806 24,700 

General Revenues: 
Property taxes 328,558 312,432 328,558 312,432 
Sales and use taxes 441,708 420,277 441,708 420,277 
Motor vehicle and fhel taxes 93,769 91,570 93,769 91,570 
Other taxes 340,461 294,284 340,461 294,284 
Investment eamings 13,681 16,546 88,656 96,085 102,337 112,631 
Transfers 148,230 164,810 (148,230) (164,810) 
Miscellaneous 43,584 23,460 43,584 23,460 

Total Revenues 2,267,287 1,830,245 1,803,459 1,768,649 4,070,746 3,598,894 

Expenses: 
General government 347,255 366,919 347,255 366,919 

Public safety 449,494 403,998 449,494 403,998 

Public works 617,116 534,248 617,116 534,248 
Cultural, parks and recreation 60,013 41,517 60,013 41,517 
Solid waste 348,827 317,206 348,827 317,206 

Water/sewer 901,819 968,589 901,819 968,589 

Gas 787,448 889,393 787,448 889,393 
Interest on long-term debt 18,276 20,887 18,276 20,887 

Economic development 227,986 104,340 227,986 104,340 
Total E)..'jJenses 2,068,967 1,789,115 1,689,267 1,857,982 3,758,234 3,647,097 

Total other items 7,006 2,643 10,403 7,006 13,046 

Change in net assets 205,326 43,773 114,192 (78,930) 319,518 (35,157) 

Net Assets - Beginning of Year 2,049,681 2,005,908 5,781,943 5,860,873 7,831,624 7,866,781 

Net Assets - End of Year $ 2,255,007 $ 2,049,681 $ 5,896,135 $ 5,781,943 $ 8,151,142 $ 7,831,624 
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 
(UNAUDITED) 

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds 

Governmental funds - The focus of the City of Montgolnery' s governmental funds is to provide 
information on near-tenn inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such 
information is useful in assessing the City's financing requirement. In particular, unreserved fund 
balance may serve as a usefullneasure of a government's net resources available for spending at 
the end of the fiscal year. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Montgomery's governmental funds repolied 
combined ending fund balances of $542,170. Of this amount $(9,636) constitutes unassigned 
fund balance. 

In the general fund, the City originally budgeted for a decrease of $95,000 in the fund balance. 
Due to actual revenues being more than budgeted, the actual fund balance increased for fiscal year 
2011 by $79,801. The final budget was adjusted to actual revenues and expenses by the City. 

Proprietary funds - The City's proprietary fund statements provide the same type of inforn1ation 
found in the government-wide financial statelnents, but in Inore detail. 

Unrestricted net assets of the respective proprietary funds are Gas - $478,229, Water/Sewer -
$724,491. Funds which had a net assets increase/(decrease) in 2011 were as follows: Gas­
$(7,347) and Water/Sewer - $121,539. 

Capital Assets 

The City of Montgomery's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type 
activities as of June 30,2011 mnounts to $10,235,910 (net of accumulated depreciation). This 
investment in capital assets includes land, building, equipment, improvements and construction in 
progress. The following table provides a summary of the City's capital assets at June 30, 2011, 
with comparative figures for June 30, 2010: 

Capital Assets At Year-End 
Net of Accumulated Depl'eciation 

Govemmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 

Pl'Opelty, plant and equipment: 
Land, land rights and land 
improvements/construction 
in progress $ 220,732 $ 235,164 $ 63,695 $ 42,960 $ 284,427 $ 278,124 

Buildings and improvements 661,097 685,092 49,493 35,786 710,590 720,878 

In fi'as tm cture 945,374 807,005 945,374 807,005 

Distribution & collection systems 7,851,364 8,123,320 7,851,364 8,123,320 

Machinery & equipment 330,129 305,554 114,026 136,926 444,155 442,480 

Net Capital Assets $ 2,157,332 $ 2,032,815 $ 8,078,578 $ 8,338,992 $ 10,235,910 $ 10,371,807 

Additional information on the City of Montgomery's capital assets can be found in Note III-D on 
pages 38 and 39 of this repoli. 
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 
(UNAUDITED) 

Debt Administration 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Montgolnery had a total bonded debt and capital 
leases payable and contracts payable of $6,489,495. Of this amount, $4,057,634 comprises 
revenue bonded debt backed by the revenues of the Gas, Water and Sewer departments. 

Outstanding Debt at Year End 
Revenue Bonds, Special Assessment Debt and Capital Lease 

The following table provides a summary of the City's outstanding debt at June 30, 2011, with 
comparative figures for June 30, 2010: 

Capital Assets At Yeaa'-End 
Net of Accumulated Depreciation 

O::>vemmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 
Capital lease obligations $ $ $ 1,183,308 $ 1,250,135 $ 1,183,308 
Notes payable 1,209,475 1,280,810 1,209,475 
Bonds payable 2,365,322 2,658,246 2,365,322 
DNR loan payable 1,692,312 1,814,956 1,692,312 
Accrued compensated absences 33,159 25,408 5,919 3,400 39,078 

Net Capital Assets $ 1,242,634 $ 1,306,218 $ 5,246,861 $ 5,726,737 $ 6,489,495 

During the fiscal year, the City's total debt decreased by $543,460 or 80/0. The decrease was due 
to scheduled debt payments. 

Additional information on the City of Montgomery's long term-debt can be found in Notes III-F 
and III -G on pages 40-47 of this report. 

Request for Information 

The financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors and creditors with a 
general overview of the City's finances. If you have questions about this report or need any 
additional information, contact the City of Montgomery, Missouri, Attn: Steven Deves, City Clerk 
or Linda Block, Deputy City Clerk, 723 N. Sturgeon St., Montgomery City, Missouri 63361. 
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 

GO VERN MEN T- WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

JUNE 30, 2011 

Governmental Bus i nes s -type 
Activities Activities Total 

ASSETS 
CUlTent Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 352,616 $ 610,005 $ 962,621 
Investments 53,218 613,948 667,166 
Taxes receivable 156,923 156,923 
Accounts receivable, net 17,864 50,712 68,576 
Intergovel11mental receivables 83,533 83,533 
Inventories 82,767 82,767 
Investment - property 961,198 961,198 

Total Current Assets 1,625,352 1,357,432 2,982,784 

Non Current Assets: 
Restricted cash 17,631 137,751 155,382 

Restricted investments 1,895,536 1,895,536 
Capital assets: 
Land 94,500 42,960 137,460 
Construction in progress 126,232 20,735 146,967 

Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 1,936,600 8,014,883 9,951,483 

Total Noncurrent Assets 2,174,963 10,111,865 12,286,828 

Total Assets 3,800,315 11,469,297 15,269,612 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities: 

Notes payable 925,855 119,122 1,044,977 

Accounts payable 137,878 43,214 181,092 

Accrued liabilities 2,813 857 3,670 
Payable From Segregated Funds: 

Interest payable 83,422 83,422 

Bonded debt due within one year 165,000 165,000 

Reft.ll1dable deposits 7,025 79,686 86,711 

Leases payable due within one year 58,308 58,308 

DNR loan fund due within one year 115,500 115,500 

Total Current Liabilities 1,073,571 665,109 1,738,680 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
Obligation for solid waste landfill 160,875 160,875 

Leases payable 1,125,000 1,125,000 

Notes payable 277,703 277,703 

Bonds payable 2,200,322 2,200,322 

DNR loan fund 1,576,812 1,576,812 

Compensated absences 33,159 5,919 39,078 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 471,737 4,908,053 5,379,790 

Total Liabilities 1,545,308 5,573,162 7,118,470 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 1,726,855 2,837,636 4,564,491 

Restricted but expendable for (except as noted): 
Debt service 10,606 1,855,779 1,866,385 

Other purposes 283,013 283,013 

Unrestricted 234,533 1,202,720 1,437,253 

Total Net Assets $ 2,255,007 $ 5,896,135 $ 8,151,142 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
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Functions/Programs 

Governmental Actvities: 
General government 
Public works 
Pub lie safety 
Solid waste 
Parks 
Community planning/economic development 
Interest on long -term debt 

Total Governmental Activities 

Business-Type Activities: 

Water and waste water 

Gas 
Total Business-Type Activities 

Total Primary Government 

CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 

GO VERN MEN T-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011 

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets 

Expenses 

$ 347,255 

617,116 

449,494 

348,827 

60,013 

227,986 
18,276 

2,068,967 

901,819 
787,448 

1,689,267 

$ 3,758,234 

Operating Primary Government 

Charges for Grants and Capital Grants & Governmental Business-type 

Services Contributions Contri butions 

$ 44,451 $ 23,043 $ 
9,134 13,526 

53,845 

370,491 

477,921 36,569 

1,010,592 
852,441 

1,863,033 

$ 2,340,954 $ 36,569 $ 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
11 

174,919 

96,623 

71,264 

342,806 

342,806 

Activities Activities 

$ (104,842) $ 
(497,833) 

(324,385) 

21,664 

(60,013) 

(227,986) 
(18,276) 

(1,211,671) 

108,773 
64,993 

173,766 

$ (1,211,671) $ 173,766 

Total 

$ (104,842) 

(497,833) 

(324,385) 

21,664 

(60,013) 

(227,986) 
(18,276) 

(1,211,671) 

108,773 
64,993 

173,766 

$ (1,037,905) 



CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
GO VERN MEN T-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (Cont'd) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011 

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets 

General Revenues: 

Taxes: 
Property taxes, levied for general purpose 
Property taxes, levied for library 

Sales tax 
Sales tax, restricted for street 
Vehicle sales taxes 
Other taxes 

Interest income 
Miscellaneous 

Transfers 

Total general revenues and transfers 

Other Items: 

Asset sales 

Change in net assets 

Net assets - beginning 

Net assets - ending 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
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Primary Government 
Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total 

$ 186,663 $ $ 186,663 

141,895 141,895 

301,929 301,929 

139,779 139,779 

93,769 93,769 

340,461 340,461 

13,681 88,656 102,337 

43,584 43,584 

148,230 (148,230) 

1,409,991 (59,574) 1,350,417 

7,006 7,006 

205,326 114,192 319,518 

2,049,681 5,781,943 7,831,624 

$ 2,255,007 $ 5,896,135 $ 8,151,142 



CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 

BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2011 

Other 
General Gove rnme ntal 

Fund 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 301,453 $ 
Investments 

Taxes receivable 109,387 
Accounts receivable, net 17,864 
Intergoverrunental receivable-grants 83,533 
Investment property 961,198 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 7,025 

Total Assets $ 1,480,460 $ 

LIABILITIES 

Notes payable $ 919,938 $ 
Accounts payable 136,390 
Accrued expenses 2,576 
Customer deposits 7,025 
Compensated absences 31,238 

Total Liabilities 1,097,167 

FUND BALANCES 

Nonspendable: real estate for resale 258,116 
Assigned to public safety 4,660 
Assigned to public works 59,944 
Ass igned to library 

Assigned to cemetery 

Assigned to library corporation 

Assigned to Gouldman cemetery 

Unassigned 60,573 

Total Fund Balances 383,293 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 1,480,460 $ 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
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Funds 

51,163 
53,218 
47,536 

10,606 

162,523 

1,488 
237 

1,921 

3,646 

100,496 
93,385 
11,086 
24,119 

(70,209) 

158,877 

162,523 

Total 

$ 352,616 
53,218 

156,923 
17,864 
83,533 

961,198 

17,631 

$ 1,642,983 

$ 919,938 
137,878 

2,813 
7,025 

33,159 

1,100,813 

258,116 
4,660 

59,944 
100,496 
93,385 
11,086 
24,119 
~9,636) 

542,170 

$ 1,642,983 



CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

JUNE 30,2011 

Total fimd balance - total govermnental fimds 

AmolUlts reported for govermnental activities in the Statement of 

Net Assets are different because: 

Capital assets used in govennnental activities of$3,721,321 

net of accumulated depreciation of$l ,546,294, are not financial 

resources and, therefore, are not reported in the fimds. 

Long-tenn liabilities of$283,620 are not due and payable in the current 

period and are not repolied in the fimds. 

Long-tenn obligation for the solid waste landfill of$160,875 is not due 

and payable in the current period and is not reported in the fimds. 

Net Assets of Governmental Activities 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
14 

$ 542,170 

2,157,332 

(283,620) 

(160,875) 

$ 2,255,007 



CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011 

Other 
General Gove rnme ntal 

Fund Funds Total 
REVENUES 

Propeliy taxes $ 186,663 $ 141,895 $ 328,558 
Sales tax 301,929 139,779 441,708 
Railroad, utility and intangible taxes 314,848 8,823 323,671 
Cigarette tax 16,790 16,790 
Motor fuel and vehicle taxes 93,769 93,769 
Intergovernmental 365,767 10,148 375,915 
Charges for services 395,400 7,684 403,084 
Fines and forfeits 44,506 44,506 
Licenses, permits and feees 29,106 1,225 30,331 
Interest 12,075 1,606 13,681 
Donations 82 3,378 3,460 
Miscellaneous 19,972 23,612 43,584 

Total Revenues 1,780,907 338,150 2,119,057 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

General government 337,368 337,368 
Public works 275,344 266,406 541,750 
Public safety 438,680 438,680 
Solid waste 359,552 359,552 

Parks 44,052 44,052 
Community planning/economic development 198,299 198,299 

Debt service 6,342 17,616 23,958 
Capital outlay 256,956 9,572 266,528 

Total Expenditures 1,916,593 293,594 2,210,187 

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over Expenditures 

and Other Sources (Uses) (135,686) 44,556 (91,130) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES 
Sale of propeliy 4,152 3,150 7,302 
Transfers in 211,335 314 211,649 

Transfers out ~63,419) ~63,419) 

Net Other Financing Sources and Uses 215,487 (59,955) 155,532 

Net Change in Fund Balances 79,801 (15,399) 64,402 

Fund Balance, beginning of year 303,492 174,276 477,768 

Fund Balance, end of year $ 383,293 $ 158,877 $ 542,170 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 

Amounts repolied for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are 

different because: 

Capital outlays are repolied as expenditures in governmental funds. 

However, in the Statement of Activities, the cost of capital assets is 

allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation 

expense. In the current year, these amounts are: 

Capital outlay 

Depreciation expense 

Excess of capital outlay over depreciation expense 

Proceeds fi'om the sale of capital as sets are repolied as other financing 

sources in the governmental funds. However, in the Statement of 

Activities, a gain or loss on sale of capital assets is recorded. In the 

current year, these amounts are: 

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 

Gain on sale of capital assets 

The repayment ofthe principal oflong-term debt consumes the current 

financial resourses of governmental funds and is an expenditure 

in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term 

liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets: 

LibralY corporation loan principal payments 

The City was required to repoli a long-term obligation for the closure 

ofa solid waste landfill. Related costs are repolied as expenditures 

in governmental funds. However, in the Statement of Activities, the 

reduction of the obligation is a reimbursement of costs. 

Change in Net Assets ofGJvernmental Activities 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
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266,528 
(141,715) 

$ 

$ 

64,402 

124,813 

(7,302) 
7,006 

5,682 

10,725 

205,326 



CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011 

Budgeted Amounts Actual 

Original Final Amounts 

REVENUES 

Propeliy taxes $ 183,000 $ 186,663 $ 186,663 

Sales tax 295,000 301,929 301,929 

Railroad, utility and intangible taxes 280,200 314,848 314,848 

Cigarette tax 14,500 16,790 16,790 

Motor fuel and vehicle taxes 93,769 93,769 

Intergovernmental 114,000 365,767 365,767 

Charges for services 386,580 395,400 395,400 

Fines and forfeits 41,000 44,506 44,506 

Licenses, permits and fees 32,200 29,106 29,106 

Interest 12,075 12,075 

Donations 82 82 

Miscellaneous 12,000 19,972 19,972 

Total Revenues 1,358,480 1,780,907 1,780,907 

EXPENDITURES 

Current 

General government 366,215 337,368 337,368 

Public works 276,370 275,344 275,344 

Pu b lie safety 419,310 438,680 438,680 

Solid waste 324,270 359,552 359,552 

Parks 37,900 44,052 44,052 

Community planning/ 

economic development 220,350 198,299 198,299 

Debt service 6,342 6,342 

Capital Outlay 256,956 256,956 

Total Expenditures 1,644,415 1,916,593 1,916,593 

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues 

over Expenditures (285,935) (135,686) (135,686) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Sale ofpropeliy 38,000 4,152 4,152 

Transfers in 152,935 211,335 211,335 

Transfers out 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 190,935 215,487 215,487 

Net Change in Fund Balances (95,000) 79,801 79,801 

Fund Balance - beginning of year 303,492 303,492 303,492 

Fund Balance - end of year $ 208,492 $ 383,293 $ 383,293 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
17 

Variance with 

Final Budget 

$ 

$ 



CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

JUNE 30,2011 

Water & 
Waste Water Gas 

Fund Fund Total 
ASSEfS 
Current Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 343,777 $ 266,228 $ 610,005 
Investments 375,446 238,502 613,948 
Accounts receivable, net 39,089 11,623 50,712 
Inventories 66,507 16,260 82,767 

Total Current Assets 824,819 532,613 1,357,432 

Noncurrent Assets: 

Restricted cash 100,430 37,321 137,751 
Restricted investments 1,895,536 1,895,536 
Capital Assets: 

Land 34,149 8,811 42,960 
Construction in progress 20,735 20,735 
Buildings and improvements 47,286 50,484 97,770 
MachinelY and equipment 412,448 150,279 562,727 
Distribution and collection systems 11,040,507 664,850 11,705,357 
Less: Accumulated depreciation (3,764,419) (586,552) (4,350,971) 

Total Noncurrent Assets 9,786,672 325,193 10,111,865 

Total Assets $ 10,611,491 $ 857,806 $ 11,469,297 

LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ 24,260 $ 18,954 $ 43,214 
Accrued expenses 486 371 857 

Current Liabilities Payable From Restricted Cash: 

Customer deposits 42,365 37,321 79,686 
Interest payable 83,422 83,422 
Revenue bonds due within one year 165,000 165,000 
Lease payable due within one year 55,529 2,779 58,308 
Notes payable 86,173 32,949 119,122 
DNR loan fund payable within one year 115,500 115,500 

Total Current Liabilities 572,735 92,374 665,109 

Non-Current Liaibilities: 

Leases payable 1,125,000 1,125,000 

Bonds payable 2,200,322 2,200,322 

DNR loan fund 1,576,812 1,576,812 

Compensated absences 3,809 2,110 5,919 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 4,905,943 2,110 4,908,053 

Total Liabilities 5,478,678 94,484 5,573,162 

NEf ASSEfS 
Investment in capital assets, net of related debt 2,552,543 285,093 2,837,636 
Restricted for debt service 1,855,779 1,855,779 

Unrestricted 724,491 478,229 1,202,720 

Total Net Assets $ 5,132,813 $ 763,322 $ 5,896,135 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 

STATEMENT OF OPERATING REVENUES, OPERATING EXPENSES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011 

Water & 
Waste Water Gas 

Fund Fund Total 
Operating Revenues: 

Charges for services $ 998,735 

Other 11,857 

Total operating revenues 1,010,592 

Operating Expenses: 

Personnel services 160,987 

Contractual services 30,675 

Repairs and maintenance 60,058 

Insurance 16,611 

Sales tax 10,807 

Utilities 85,408 

Other supplies and expenses 76,332 

Amortization 1,659 

Depreciation 276,397 

Total operating expenses 718,934 

Operating Income 291,658 

Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses): 
Interest revenue 87,246 

Interest expense (182,885) 

Total nonoperating revenue (expense) (95,639) 

Net Income Before Transfers 

Transfers 

Transfer out 

Total Transfers 

Change in Net Assets 

Net assets - beginning of year 

Net assets - end of year 

196,019 

(74,480) 

(74,480) 

121,539 

5,011,274 

$ 5,132,813 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
19 

$ 838,440 $ 1,837,175 

14,001 25,858 

852,441 1,863,033 

121,235 282,222 

589,797 620,472 

4,991 65,049 

16,611 

21,071 31,878 

13,151 98,559 

15,480 91,812 

1,659 

20,416 296,813 

786,141 1,505,075 

66,300 357,958 

1,410 88,656 

(1,307) (184,192) 

103 (95,536) 

66,403 262,422 

(73,750) (148,230) 

(73,750) (148,230) 

(7,347) 114,192 

770,669 5,781,943 

$ 763,322 $ 5,896, l35 



CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

Water & 

Waste Water 

Fund 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Receipts from customers $ 1,010,007 

Payments to suppliers and contractors (289,147) 

Payments to and on behalf of employees (158,690) 

Receipts (payments ) of customer depos its (net) 2,755 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 564,925 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Transfers to other funds (74,480) 

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities (74,480) 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 

RELATED FINANCING ACTMTlES 

Purchases of capital assets (36,398) 

Principal paid on capital debt (503,804) 

Interest paid on capital debt (188,022) 

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities (728,224) 

CASH FLOWS FROMlNVESTINGACTMTlES 
Proceeds fi·om sales and maturities of investment assets 134,526 

Purchase of investment assets (10,751) 

Interest 87,246 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 211,021 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (26,758) 

Balances - beginning of year 470,965 

Balances - end of year $ 444,207 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
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Gas 

Fund Total 

$ 851,539 $ 1,861,546 

(642,087) (931,234) 

(120,156) (278,846) 

2,652 5,407 

91,948 656,873 

(73,750) (148,230) 

(73,750) (148,230) 

(36,398) 

(16,783) (520,587) 

(1,307) (189,329) 

(18,090) (746,314) 

134,526 

(905) (11,656) 

1,410 88,656 

505 211,526 

613 (26,145) 

302,936 773,901 

$ 303,549 $ 747,756 



CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONT'D) 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011 

Water & 
Waste Water 

Fund 

DISPLA YED AS: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 343,777 

Res tricted cas h 100,430 

$ 444,207 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO 

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Operating income (loss) $ 291,658 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 

provided (used) by operating activities: 

Depreciation expense 276,397 

Amortization expense 1,659 

Change in assets and liabilities: 

Receivables, net (585) 

Inventories (9,211) 

Accounts and other payables (45) 

Accrued expenses 486 

Compensated absences payable 1,811 

Customer deposits 2,755 

Total adjustments 273,267 

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 564,925 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
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Gas 
Fund Total 

$ 266,228 $ 610,005 

37,321 l37,75 1 

$ 303,549 $ 747,756 

$ 66,300 $ 357,958 

20,416 296,813 

1,659 

(902) (l,487) 

2,797 (6,414) 

(394) (439) 

371 857 

708 2,519 

2,652 5,407 

25,648 298,915 

$ 91,948 $ 656,873 



ASSETS 
Investment 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

JUNE 30,2011 

Deferred compensation benefits 

Total Liabilities 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
22 

Employee 

Deferred 
Compensation 

Fund 

$ 40,186 

$ 40,186 

$ 40,186 

$ 40,186 



CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011 

ADDITIONS 

Contributions 

Employer/employee 

Total contributions 

Investment earnings 

Investment income 

Net increase (decrease) in fair 

value of investments 

Net investment earnings 

Total Additions 

DEDUCTIONS 

Total Deductions 

Change in net assets 

Net assets, beginning of year 

Net assets, end of year 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
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Employee 
Deferred 

Compensation 
Fund 

$ 2,600 

2,600 

3,565 

3,565 

6,165 

6,165 

34,021 

$ 40,186 



CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2011 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements of the City of Montgomery, Missouri, have been prepared in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States of 
America. The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard 
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The 
more significant of the City's accounting policies are described below. 

A. The Reporting Entity 

In evaluating how to define the government, for financial reporting purposes, lnanagelnent has 
considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit 
in the reporting entity was Inade by applying the criteria set forth by the Governlnental 
Accounting Standards Board, as outlined in the Statelnent of Financial Accounting Standards 
No. 14, "The Financial Reporting Entity." SFAS No. 14 defines the reporting entity as the 
primary government and those component units for which primary government is financial 
accountable. Financial accountability is defined as appointment of a voting majority of the 
component unit's board, and either, (1) the ability to impose will by the primary government, 
or (2) the possibility that the component unit will provide a financial benefit to or iInpose a 
financial burden on the primary government. 

Blended Component Unit 

The Montgolnery City Library Corporation is a not-for-profit corporation governed by a board 
of directors which is the SaIne as the City's library board and which is appointed by the City 
Council. The purpose of the corporation is solely to benefit the City's library. The 
corporation's fiscal year ends June 30. 

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

Government- Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net assets and the 
statement of activities. These statements report financial information for the City as a whole 
excluding fiduciary activities. The statements distinguish between governmental and 
business-type activities. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, 
intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange revenues. Business-type activities are 
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services. 

24 



CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2011 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
function are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly 
identifiable with a specific function. Progrmn revenues include (l) charges to custOlners or 
applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided 
by a given function and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting operational 
or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items not properly included 
among program revenues are reported as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements 

Fund financial statements provide reports on the financial condition and results of operation 
for three fund categories - govermnental, proprietary, and fiduciary. Major individual 
governmental and enterprise funds are reported as separate colulnns in the fund financial 
statements. Relnaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as 
nonmajor funds. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses result from providing services and producing and delivering 
goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. All other 
revenues and expenses are nonoperating. The City has not elected to apply, under Paragraph 
7 of GASB Statelnent No. 20, for its proprietary funds to follow Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989. 

Fiduciary funds financial statements include the statement of assets and liabilities. The 
statement of assets and liabilities includes information about the assets held in an agency 
capacity. 

C. Fund Accounting 

Governmental Funds 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund 
The General Fund is used to account for all revenues and expenditures of the City not 
accounted for in other funds. It is an operating fund from which Inost current operations are 
financed. It is required by law to operate in accordance with a formal budget. 
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2011 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Proprietary Funds 

The City reports the following major enterprise funds: 

Water and Waste Water Fund 
The Water and Waste Water Fund accounts for the operating activities of the City's water and 
waste water utilities services. 

Gas Fund 
The Gas Fund accounts for the operating activities of the City's gas utilities services. 

Other Funds 

The City also reports the following governmental fund types: 

Street Fund 
The Street Fund accounts for the operating activities of the City's streets. This is reported 
with governmental activities in the government-wide statelnents. 

Library Fund 
The Library Fund accounts for the operating activities of the City's library. This is reported 
with governlnental activities in the government-wide statelnents. 

Cemetery Fund 
The Cemetery Fund accounts for the operating activities of the City's cemetery. This is 
reported with governmental activities in the government-wide statements. 

Gouldman Cemetery Fund 
The G'Ouldman Cemetery Fund accounts for assets that are held for the Cemetery Fund. Only 
interest earned on principal can be used by the cemetery. This is a pennanent fund reported 
with governmental activities in the government-wide statements. 

26 



CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2011 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

The City also reports the following fiduciary fund type: 

Employee Deferred Compensation Fund 
The Employee Deferred Compensation Fund accounts for assets held by the City which are for 
elnployees who defer a portion of their compensation under the provisions of Internal Revenue 
Code Section 457. Agency funds are custodial funds (assets equal liabilities); therefore, they 
do not involve measurelnent of operations. All amounts of compensation deferred under the 
plan, all property rights purchased with those mnounts, and all income attributable to those 
amounts, property, or rights are (until paid or made available to the employee or other 
beneficiary) solely the property and rights of the City (without being restricted to the 
provisions of benefits under the plan), subject only to the claims of the City's general creditors. 
Pmiicipants' rights under the plan are equal to those of general creditors of the City in the 
mnount equal to the fair n1arket value of the deferred account for each pmiicipant. All assets 
of the plan are repolied at fair market value. 

D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statel1'lents 
The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the 
economic resources measurelnent focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the tilne liabilities are incurred, regardless 
of when the related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the City gives 
(or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include 
property taxes, grants, entitlelnents, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue frOln 
property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from 
grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility 
requirements have been satisfied. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements 
Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurelnent focus and 
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when 
they are measurable and available. The City considers all revenues reported in the 
governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days after 
year-end. Propeliy taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest are considered to 
be susceptible to accrual. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is 
incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt which are reported as 
expenditures in the year due. General capital asset acquisitions are repolied as expenditures 
in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital 
leases are reported as other financing sources. 
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2011 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

E. Deposits and Investments 

The City's investments include money market accounts, certificates of deposits, and real 
estate. Accordingly, the City's money market accounts and certificates of deposits at June 30, 
2011, carry no market risk; however, the real estate is subject to market fluctuations. 

Interest earned on unrestricted investInents accounts is allocated to various funds based upon 
their pro-rate share of the total investment balance. 

Statutes, the City Charter, and legal opinions authorize the City to invest in obligations of the 
U.S. Treasury, agencies, and instrumentalities; states, agencies, and political subdivisions 
thereof; mutual funds containing authorized securities; and certificates of deposit of banks and 
savings and loans in Missouri. 

F. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The City considers cash and cash equivalents in the proprietary fund to be cash and all highly 
liquid investments with an original maturity of 90 days or less. 

G. Receivables 

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and 
not yet received. Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical 
trends and the periodic aging of accounts receivable. Major receivable balances for the 
governmental activities include sales and use taxes, franchise taxes, grants, police fines, and 
ambulance fees. Business-type activities report utilities and interest earnings as their major 
receivables. 

In the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds include revenue 
accruals such as sales tax, franchise tax, and grants and other similar intergovernlnental 
revenues since they are usually both measurable and available. Nonexchange transactions 
collectible but not available are deferred in the fund financial statements in accordance with 
modified accrual, but not deferred in the government-wide financial statements in accordance 
with the accrual basis. Interest and investment earnings are recorded when earned only if paid 
within 60 days since they would be considered both measurable and available. Proprietary 
fund material receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received. 
Utility accounts receivable and interest earnings compose the majority of proprietary fund 
receivables. Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical 
trends and the periodic aging of accounts receivable. 
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2011 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

H. Property Tax Calendar 

Property taxes are levied on August 15 and are due no later than December 31. The levy rate 
is established by the Board of Aldermen each year. Any taxes due and not paid by Decen1ber 
31 are considered delinquent. 

I. Inventories 

Inventories of materials and supplies in the business-type activities are stated at cost using the 
specific identification method. 

J. Capital Assets 

The City's property, plant, equiplnent, and infrastructure with useful lives of more than one 
year are stated at historical cost and reported in the government-wide financial statements. 
Proprietary capital assets are also reported in their respective fund financial statelnents. 
Donated fixed assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Prior to 
July 1, 2003, general infrastructure assets were not capitalized. Infrastructure assets acquired 
since July 1, 2003, are recorded at cost. 

Depreciation is provided over the assets' estimated useful lives using the straight-line method 
of depreciation. A capitalization threshold of $500 is used to report capital assets. The cost 
of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend 
assets' lives are not capitalized. When capital assets are disposed, the costs and applicable 
accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts, and the resulting gain or 
loss is recorded in operations. The range of estimated useful lives by types of asset is as 
follows: 

Buildings 
Improvements other than buildings 
Machinery, furniture, and equipment 
Distribution and collection systems 
Infrastructure 
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2011 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

K. Accounts Payable 

Accounts payable of the governmental activities and business-type activities consist of 
amounts due to vendors. 

L. Long-Term Debt and Bond Discounts/Premiums 

In the govermnent-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, outstanding debt is reported 
as liabilities. Bond issuance costs and bond discounts or premiums are capitalized and 
amortized over the terms of the respective bonds using a method that approximates the 
effective interest method. 

The governmental fund financial statements recognize the proceeds of debt and premiums as 
other financing sources of the current period. Issuance costs are reported as expenditures. 

M. Equity Classifications 

Government- Wide Statements 
Equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three components: 

1. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - Consists of capital assets including 
restricted capital assets, net of acculnulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding 
balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvements of those assets. 

2. Restricted net assets - Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either by 
(1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of 
other governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

3. Unrestricted net assets - All other net assets that do not meet the definition of "restricted" 
or "invested in capital assets, net of related debt." 

It is the City's policy to first use restricted net assets prior to the use of unrestricted net assets 
when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets 
are available. 
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2011 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Fund Equity - Fund Financial Statements: 
Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Beginning with FY 2011, the City 
implemented GASB Statement 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type 
Definitions. This statement provides more clearly defined fund balance categories to make 
the nature and extent of the constraints placed on a government's fund balance lllore 
transparent. The following classifications describe the relative strength of the spending 
constraints placed on the purpose for which resources can be used: 

• Nonspendable: This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they 
are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be 
maintained intact. The City's nonspendable funds are as detailed in Note III-J. 

It Restricted: This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed 
on the use of resources because they are either: 

• Externally illlposed by creditors (such as through debt convenants), 
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or 
Imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation. 

Management has determined there are no mllounts that should be considered restricted. 

.. Committed: This classification includes amounts that can only be used for specific 
purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action (resolution) of the City's 
board of aldermen, which is the City's highest level of decision-making authority. 
These amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the board of aldermen 
removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action that was 
employed when the funds were initially committed. This classification also includes 
contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources have been specifically 
committed for use in satisfying those contractual requireillents. The City did not have any 
committed resources as of year end. 

• Assigned: This classification includes spendable amounts that are reported in 
governmental funds other than the General Fund, that are neither restricted nor 
committed, and amounts in the General Fund that are intended to be used for a specific 
purpose in accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement 54. The intent of an 
assigned fund balance should be expressed by either the City's board of aldermen, or a 
subordinate high-level body, such as a finance committee, or an official, such as the 
executive director, that has the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific 
purposes. The City's manageillent assigned funds during year as detailed in Note III-J. 
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2011 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

• Unassigned: This classification is the residual fund balance for the General Fund. It 
also represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not 
been restricted, comluitted, or assigned to specific purposes within the General Fund 
including any governmental fund in a deficit position. 

When fund balance resources are available for a specific purpose in Iuultiple 
classifications, the City would use the most restrictive funds first in the following order: 
restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned as they are needed. However, it 
reserves the right to selectively spend unassigned resources first and to defer to the use of 
the other classified funds. 

N. Program Revenues 

In the stateluent of activities, revenues that are derived directly from each activity or from 
pmiies outside the City's taxpayers are reported as program revenues. The City has the 
following program revenues in each activity: 

General Govermuent 

Public Works 

Public Safety 

Solid Waste 

Parks 

COlumunity Planning/ 
Econoluic Development 

Licenses and permits; operating grant from the Missouri 
Department of Social Services 

Commercial vehicle and gasoline excise tax shared by 
the State; celuetery lot sales and permits; library fees and 
operating grants and contributions 

Fine revenue; operating and capital grants frolu the 
Missouri Depmiment of Public Safety 

Fees 

None 

Community development block grants 

All other governmental revenues are reported as general. All taxes are classified as general 
revenue even if restricted for a specific purpose. 

O. Operating Revenue and Expense 

Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds result from providing services and 
producing and delivering goods and/or services. They also include all revenues and expenses 
not related to capital and related financing, noncapital financing, or investing activities. 
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2011 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

P. Internal and Interfund Balances and Activities 

In the process of aggregating the financial information for the government-wide Statement of 
Net Assets and Statement of Activities, some amounts reported as interfund activity in the fund 
financial statements have been eliminated or reclassified. 

Fund Financial Statements 

Interfund activity, if any, within or among the governmental and proprietary fund categories is 
reported as follows in the fund financial statements: 

1. Interfund loans - Alnounts provided with a requirement for repayment are reported as 
interfund receivables and payables. 

2. Interfund reimbursements - Repaylnents frOln funds responsible for certain 
expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not reported as 
reimbursements but as adjustments to expenditures/expenses in the respective funds. 

3. Interfund transfers - Flow of assets from one fund to another where repayment is not 
expected are reported as transfers in and out. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

Interfund activity and balances, if any, are eliminated or reclassified in the government-wide 
financial statements as follows: 

1. Internal balances - Amounts repolied in the fund financial statements as interfund 
receivables and payables are elilninated in the governmental and business-type activities 
columns of the Statement of Net Assets, except for the net residual amounts due between 
governmental and business-type activities, which are reported as Internal Balances. 

2. Internal activities - Amounts reported as interfund transfers in the fund financial statements 
are elilninated in the governlnent-wide Statelnent of Activities except for the net amount of 
transfers between governmental and business-type activities, which are reported as 
Transfers. 
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2011 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Q. Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to Inake estimates and assumptions that affect the repolied 
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

II. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

A. Deposits and Investment Laws and Regulations 

In accordance with state law, all uninsured deposits of municipal funds in financial institutions 
must be secured with acceptable collateral valued at the lower of market or par. Acceptable 
collateral includes certain U.S. Governlnent or Government Agency securities, certain State of 
Missouri or political subdivision debt obligations, or surety bonds. As required by 12 
U.S.C.A., Section 1823(e), all financial institutions pledging collateral to the City must have a 
written collateral agreement approved by the board of directors or loan committee. As 
reflected in Note III-A, all deposits were fully insured or collateralized. 

B. Budget Basis of Accounting 

The City of Montgomery prepares its annual budget on a basis (budget basis), which agrees 
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP basis). The budget and all transactions 
are presented in accordance with the City's Inethod (budget basis) in the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual to provide a 
Ineaningful comparison of actual results with the budget. 

III. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS 

The following notes present detail information to support the amounts reported in the basic 
financial statements for its various assets, liabilities, net assets, revenues, and 
expenditures/expenses. 

A. Cash and Investments 

The City pools the cash and investments of all funds to maximize investment return. 
Individual fund balances are maintained by the City's accounting system. The City cOlnplies 
with various restrictions on deposits and investlnents which are imposed by state statutes as 
follows: 
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2011 

III. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS (continued) 

Deposits - All deposits with financial institutions must be collateralized in an amount at least 
equal to uninsured deposits. 

Investments - The City may purchase any investments allowed by the State Treasurer. These 
include (1) obligations of the United States governlnent or any agency or instrulnentality 
thereof maturing and becolning payable not more than three years from the date of purchase, or 
(2) repurchase agreements maturing and becolning payable within ninety days secured by U. S. 
Treasury obligations or obligations of U. S. government agencies or instrumentalities of any 
maturity, as provided by law. 

The deposits and investments held at June 30, 2011 are shown below: 

Deposits: 
Demand deposits 
Time deposit 
Time depos it 
Time deposit 
Time deposits 
Time deposit 
Time deposit 
Time deposit 
Time deposits 
Time deposits 
Time deposit 
Time deposit 
Time deposit 
Time deposit 
Time deposits 

Total Deposits 
Investments: 

U.S. Treasury Obligations 
Total Investments 

Total deposits and investments 
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Maturities 

7/13/2011 
8/212011 
8/5/2011 

8/3112011 

9/9/2011 
9/30/2011 

10/14/2011 
11114/2011 

12/8/2011 
12/3112011 

21912012 
6/1/2012 

6/1112012 
3/24/2013 

$ 

$ 

Carrying 
Value 

977,436 
411,585 

6,318 
5,832 
7,060 

33,019 
6,385 

24,121 
18,741 
98,394 

3,246 
15,267 
70,950 

9,111 
74,000 

1,761,465 

1,919,240 
1,919,240 
3,680,705 



CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2011 

III. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS (continued) 

At June 30, 2011, cash of the business-type activities was as follows: 

Reconciliation of Statement of Net Assets: 

CUlTent: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Investments 

Total Current 

N onCUlTent: 

Restricted cash 

Restricted investments 

Total Noncurrent 

Total 

$ 

$ 

610,005 
613,948 

1,223,953 

137,751 
1,895,536 
2,033,287 
3,257,240 

Custodial Credit Risk. Deposits in financial institutions, reported as components of cash and 
investments had a bank balance of $1,799,131 at June 30, 2011. Balances at all banks were 
fully insured or secured with collateral held by the City's agent in its name. All investments 
are registered in the name of the City. 

Investnlent interest rate risk. The City has no fonnal investment policy that limits 
investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from 
increasing interest rates. Maturities of investments held at June 30, 2011, are provided in the 
previous schedule. 

Investment credit risk. The City maintains cash deposits and investments which are 
authorized by City ordinances related to the long-term debt issuances. The Council has given 
the City Administrator and Finance Director the authority to invest idle funds of the City in 
low-risk investments such as United States government securities or collateralized celiificates 
of deposit. 

Concentration of investnlent credit risk. The City places no liInit on the amount it Inay 
invest in anyone issuer. At June 30, 2011, the City had no concentration of credit risk. 

Restricted Assets 

The restricted assets represent custolner utility deposits and cash and investments reserved in 
accordance with the Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System revenue bond ordinances. 
The restricted assets can be used only for the following: 
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2011 

III. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS (continued) 

Customer Deposits - Refunds of utility deposits to customers 
discontinuing utility usage. 

Bond Reserve Account - Payment of principal and interest only when 
and to the extent other funds are not available for that purpose. 

Bond Replacement and Extension Account - Payments for replacements 
or extensions to the system. 

Bond Principal and Interest - Payment of bond principal and interest 

Total Restricted Assets 

$ 

$ 

79,686 

1,730,355 

34,400 

188,846 

2,033 287 

The bond ordinances state that deposits shall be held by banks in the State of Missouri which 
are members of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. No investment shall be made for 
a period extending longer than to the date when the moneys invested may be needed for the 
purpose of the fund. 

Investment in Property 

The City has purchased property to be used for development within the City. The acquisition 
cost of the property at June 30, 2011, as recorded on the Government-Wide Statement of Net 
Assets was $961,198. Notes payable for which these properties are held as collateral total 
$703,082. 

B. Receivables 

Accounts receivable of the business-type activities consist of utilities receivable. Accounts 
receivable of the governmental activities consist of miscellaneous receivables. Receivables 
detail at June 30, 2011, is as follows: 

The City provides an allowance for doubtful accounts based upon a review of existing 
receivables. Based on prior experience of collectability the accounts receivable have been 
adjusted as follows: 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

Total accounts receivable $ 35,147 $ 147,410 $ 182,557 
Less: Allowance for 

uncollectible accounts (17,283) (96,698) (113,981) 
Net accounts receivable $ 17,864 $ 50,712 $ 68,576 
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2011 

III. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS (continued) 

C. Taxes Receivable 

Taxes receivable of the governmental activities consist of property, sales, franchise, gas and 
motor vehicle tax receivable. Receivables detail at June 30, 2011 was as follows: 

Governmental 
Activities 

Taxes receivable $ 156,923 
Allowance for uncollectable accounts 

Net taxes receivable $ 156.923 

D. Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, was as follows: 

Balance at Balance at 
June 30, June 30, 

Gwernmental Activities: 2010 Additions DisEosals 2011 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land $ 94,500 $ $ $ 94,500 
Construction in progress 140,664 114,232 (128,664) 126,232 

235,164 114,232 {128,664) 220,732 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings and improvements 930,184 930,184 
Machinery, equipment and fumiture 1,047,230 143,452 (17,695) 1,172,987 
Infhstructure 1,181,849 197,874 1,379,723 

3,159,263 341,326 (17,695) 3,482,894 
Total capital assets at historical costs 3,394,427 455,558 (146,359) 3,703,626 

Les s accumulated depreciation: 
Buildings and improvements (245,092) (23,995) (269,087) 
Machinery, equipment and fumiture (741,676) (118,581) 17,399 (842,858) 

In fi'as tm cture (374,844) (59,505) (434,349) 

Total accumulated depreciation (1,361,6122 (202,081 2 17,399 {I ,546,294) 

Net capital assets being depreciated 1,797,651 139,245 (296) 1,936,600 

Net capital assets $ 2,032,815 $ 253,477 $ (128,960) $ 2,157,332 
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2011 

DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS (continued) 

Balance at Balance at 
June 30, June 30, 

Business-Type Activities: 2010 Additions Disposals 2011 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land $ 42,960 $ $ $ 42,960 
Construction in progress 20,735 20,735 

42,960 20,735 63,695 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings and improvements 82,107 15,663 97,770 
Machinery, equipment and fumiture 602,793 (40,066) 562,727 
Distribution and collection systems 11,705,357 11,705,357 

12,390,257 15,663 (40,066) 12,365,854 
Total capital assets at historical costs 12,433,217 36,398 (40,066) 12,429,549 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Buildings and improvements (46,321) (1,956) (48,277) 

Machinery, equipment and fumiture (465,867) (22,900) 40,066 (448,701) 

Distribution and collection systems (3,582,037) (271,956) (3,853,993) 
Total accumulated depreciation ( 4,094,225) (296,812) 40,066 (4,350,971) 

Net capital assets being depreciated 8,296,032 ~281, 149) 8,014,883 

Net cap ital as sets $ 8,338,992 $ (260,414) $ $ 8,078,578 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows in the Statelnent of Activities: 

Governmental Activities: 
General 
Public works 
Public safety 
Parks 
Community planning/econolnic development 

Total depreciation expense for governlnental activities 

Business-Type Activities: 
Water and waste water 
Gas 

Total depreciation expense for business-type activities 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

9,887 
75,365 
10,814 
15,961 
29,688 

141.715 

276,396 
20,416 

$=~2==96~, 8==1==2 



CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2011 

III. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS (continued) 

E. Accounts Payable 

Payables in the governmental funds are cOlnposed of payables to vendors (980/0) and accrued 
salaries and benefits (2%). Payables of Enterprise Funds are composed of payables to 
vendors (98%) and accrued salaries and benefits (2%). 

F. Short-term Notes 

Changes in Short-Term Debt: 

The following is a summary of changes in short-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2011: 

Balance at Balance at 
June 30, June 30, 

T~Ee of Debt 2010 Additions Dis)2osals 2011 
Governmental Activities: 

Notes payable $ 991,508 $ $ 65,653 $ 925,855 
Total $ 991,508 $ $ 65,653 $ 925,855 

On December 7, 2007, the City borrowed $45,000 for the City Hall building roof, with an 
interest rate of 6.50/0. The note has been renewed at 4% and is now due December 7, 2011. 
The balance at June 30, 2011 was $6,962. 

In December 1996 the City entered into a short-tenn note to finance the purchase of land for a 
business parle The City plans to sell off tracts of land to businesses who wish to build in the 
business park. The real estate was pledged as collateral for the note amount of $469,000. 
The note has been renewed various times over the past several years as required by the bank. 
The note was renewed once again on June 5, 2011, and willlnature on June 5, 2012. The 
unpaid principal balance will bear interest at an annual rate equal to the prilne rate announced 
by the banle At June 30, 2011, the interest rate was 2.05%. The interest rate is adjusted each 
time the prime rate changes. There were no principal payments made during the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2011. At June 30, 2011, the note had a principal balance of $129,000. 

On December 7, 2007, the City's transportation fund borrowed $45,000 to finance the 
purchase of a dUlnp truck. The loan was renewed on December 7, 2010 at 4.21 % interest and 
is due December 7, 2011. The balance at June 30, 2011 was $5,566. Interest paid during the 
fiscal year was $438 and principal was $11,142. 

On June 1, 2011, the City borrowed $412,500 for the purchase of developed real estate land. 
The loan is due June 1, 2012 and the interest rate is 2.05%. The balance at June 30, 2011 is 
$412,500. 

On June 1, 2011, the City borrowed $70,000 at 2.707%, with a maturity of June 1, 2012. 
Certificate of deposit number 34324 is held as collateral. The balance at June 30, 2011 is 
$70,000. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2011 

III. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS (continued) 

On June 1,2010, the City borrowed $161,581.67 from the Montgomery City Growth, Inc. at 
0% for the purchase of developed land. The loan Inatures upon the sale of the property. The 
balance at June 30, 2011 is $161,581.67. 

On July 13, 2009, the City borrowed $400,000 to finance street paving, watermain 
replacement, and the purchase ofa bacld10e and tractor. The loan is due July 13,2011, and the 
interest rate is 2.60%. The repayment of the loan is made from the Street Fund (530/0), Water 
(20.5%) and Sewer Fund (13.5%) and the Gas Fund (13%). The balance at June 30, 2011 is 
$253,450.92 and interest paid during 2010-2011 was $10,052. 

The debt balance at June 30, 2011 is reported in the following funds as shown: 

General 
Water and Sewer 
Gas 

Total 

G. Long-term Debt 

Changes in long-term debt: 

$ 

$ 

134,329 (governmental) 
86,173 
32,949 

119, 122 (business-type) 
253.451 

The following is a summary of changes of long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2011: 

Balance Balance Amounts 
June 30, June 30, Due Within 

TJ::2e of Debt 2010 Additions Deductions 2011 One Year 
Govemmental Activities: 
Notes Payab Ie $ 289,302 $ $ 5,682 $ 283,620 $ 5,917 
Accrued compensated absences 25,408 7,751 33,159 
Total General Long-Term Debt $ 314,710 $ 7,751 $ 5,682 $ 316,779 $ 5,917 

Business-Type Activities: 
Bonds Payable $ 2,658,246 $ $ 292,924 $ 2,365,322 $ 165,000 
Capital Lease Obligations 1,250,135 66,827 1,183,308 58,308 
DNR Loan Payable 1,814,956 122,644 1,692,312 115,500 
Accrued Compens ated A bs en ces 3,400 2,519 5,919 

Total Enterprise Fund Debt $ 5,726,737 $ 2,519 $ 482,395 $ 5,246,861 $ 338,808 
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III. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS (continued) 

The City issued $3,500,000 of Revenue Bonds on November 1,2001. The bond proceeds 
were used to improve and extend the City's Waterworks and Sewerage System. These 
bonds were approved by the City's voters in November 1997. The following is a 
summary of bond transactions for the year ended June 30, 2011, for this issue: 

Bonds payable at June 30, 2011 
Less: Current portion due June 1,2010 
Long-term debt at June 30, 2011 

Revenue Bonds 
Combined Waterworks and 

Sewerage System 
2001 Bond Issue 

$ 2,300,000 
(165,000) 

$ 2.135.000 

The Revenue Bonds become due on July 1 in annual installments of$145,000 to $220,000 
through July 1,2022. Bonds bear interest ranging from 3.00% to 5.000/0. Principal and 
interest payments required for each of the next five years and five-year increlnents to 
maturity are as follows: 

Year Ending Annual Rate 
June 30, of Interest Principal Interest 

2012 4.00% $ 165,000 $ 114,869 

2013 5.375% 170,000 107,000 
2014 5.375% 175,000 97,728 
2015 5.000% 180,000 88,187 

2016 5.3750/0 180,000 78,512 
2017-2021 5.375% 995,000 239,445 

2022 5.00% 435,000 21,875 

Total $ 2,300,000 $ 747,616 

Total long-term debt for the two bond issuances is reported net of unamortized bond 
premium, discounts, and issuance costs of $65,322. Bond premium, discounts, and 
issuance costs are amortized over the term of the bonds. A summary of net long-term debt 
at June 30, 2011, is as follows: 

Total Long-Term Debt 
Add: Premium 
Less: Issuance Costs 
Net Long-Term Debt 
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$ 

$ 

2,300,000 
98,170 

(32,848) 
2.365.322 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,2011 

III. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS (continued) 

With the issuance of the 2001 Series Bonds, the City is participating in the Missouri 
Leveraged State Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund Program (the "SRF Progralu") 
of the Missouri Department of Natural Resources ("DNR") and the State Environluental 
Improvement and Energy Resources Authority to provide the most cost effective financing 
of the extensions and improvements to the City's Waterworks and Sewerage Systelu. 
DNR is making the revolving fund loan to the City under the Clean Water SRF Program 
from the available money in the Water and Wastewater Loan Fund. 

The revolving fund loan is funded in installments as disbursements are made to the City. 
Each installment of the revolving fund loan is an amount equal to the reserve percentage 
(70%) of the SUIU of the actual reiluburseluent aluount approved by DNR in accordance 
with the purchase agreement. No interest is payable on the loan. 

The City is responsible for repayment of the revolving fund loan in the following luam1er. 
On the date of each payment of the principal aluount of the participant bonds or the 
defeasance, thereof, the trustee (UMB Bank, N .A.) will transfer, from the reserve account 
to the master trustee (UMB Bank, N.A.), an amount equal to the reserve percentage of the 
principal amount of the participant bonds paid or deemed paid within the meaning of the 
ordinance. No transfer will result in the reserve security being less than the reserve 
percentage of the outstanding principal amount of the participant bonds. The outstanding 
balance of the revolving loan fund is reduced by the amount of the transfer to the master 
trustee (UMB Bank, N.A.). During the year ended June 30, 2011, DNR made loan fund 
payments in the amount of $0 to the City. The City repaid $122,644 during the year ended 
June 30, 2011, leaving a balance of $1,692,312. 

Governmental Activities 

Library Corporation 

On March 6, 2008, the Montgomery Library Corporation borrowed $300,000 from USDA 
Rural Development for the purchase of the library building from the City of Montgomery 
in the amount of $310,000. The funds were borrowed at an interest rate of 4.1250/0 per 
annum, with the principal and interest to be paid over a period of30 years with the due date 
of the final installment of March 6,2038. 

A reserve account is to be established in the sum of $3,524 each year until there is 
accumulated in that account the sum of $35,240. As of June 30, 2011, the debt service 
account balance was $5,303 and the replacement and extension account balance was 
$5,303. 
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III. 

CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2011 

DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS (continued) 

Principal and interest payments required for each of the next five years and five-year 
increments to Inaturity are as follows: 

Year Ending 
June 30, Principal Interest Total 

2012 $ 5,917 $ 11,699 $ 17,616 
2013 6,161 11,455 17,616 
2014 6,415 11,201 17,616 
2015 6,680 10,936 17,616 
2016 6,955 10,661 17,616 

2017-2021 39,323 48,757 88,080 
2022-2026 48,130 39,950 88,080 
2027-2031 58,910 29,170 88,080 
2032-2036 72,105 15,975 88,080 
2037-2038 33,024 2,054 35,078 

Total $ 283,620 $ 191,858 $ 475,478 

Capital Leases 

The changes in capital lease obligations for the year ended June 30, 2011 are shown below: 

Balance Lease Principal Balance Interest 
6/30/2010 Proceeds Paid 6/30/2011 Paid 

Business-Type Activities: 
Water & waste water $ 1,240,678 $ $ 60,149 $1,180,529 $ 61,256 

Gas 9,458 6,679 2,779 366 
$ 1,250,136 $ 66,828 $1,183,308 $ 61,622 

The governmental activities and the business-type activities assets which are subject to these 
leases have costs as follows: 

Leased property 
Leased property accumulated depreciation 
Total 
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Business-Type 
Activities 

$ 1,505,144 
(162,988) 

$ 1,342,156 



CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2011 

III. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS (continued) 

The City has entered into several capital leases for the acquisition of an excavator and vehicles. 
The following is a schedule of the future minimum paYluents under these capital leases as of 
June 30, 2011. 

Total lease payments 
Less: Amount representing interest 
Totalobligation under capital leases 
Les s: CUlTent portion 
Totallong-tenn obligation under capital leases 

Lease - Purchase Agreeluent 

Year Ending 
June 30, 

2012 

Business-Type 
Activities 

$ 

$ 

8,518 
8,518 
(210) 

8,308 
(8,308) 

The City entered into a Base Lease and Lease Purchase Obligation as of February 1, 2007, 
for certain personal property of the City including the clarifier equipment of the City's 
combined water and sewerage system. This equipment consists of a traveling bridge with 
scrapers on the bottom of its basin that rotates around a center point, which sits inside a 
circular concrete structure with steel wire around its circumference. 

The City leased the Leased Property to First Bank of Missouri (The Trustee), who then 
leased the Leased Property back to the City pursuant to a Lease/Purchase Agreement of 
even date and executed a Declaration of Trust (The Indenture) of the same date under 
which the Trustee delivered Certificates of Pmiicipation (City of Montgomery, Missouri, 
Lessee) Series 2007 to provide funds to pay the costs of the project and pay the costs of 
delivering the Series 2007 Certificates. 

The term of the base lease commenced on February 1,2007, and will end on February 1, 
2027. 

The Trustee leased the personal property back to the City with the City having the right to 
purchase the property back. Annual payments consisting of a Base Rental representing a 
Principal component are payable on each February 1 beginning February 1, 2008. There 
is also a Base Rental payluent representing an Interest Component payable on February 1 
and August 1. The first payment was on August 1, 2007. 

In addition to the Base Rentals, the City will from time to time be required to pay for 
certain expenses such as reasonable trustee expenses, maintenance and repairs of the leased 
property, public liability and workers' compensation insurance and various other costs 
associated with the property. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2011 

III. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS (continued) 

If the City is not in default in making payments as discussed above, the City may instruct 
the Trustee to take all steps that may be necessary under the prepayment provisions of the 
Indenture to effect the prepayment of all or such part of the then outstanding certificates on 
such optional prepayn1ent dates as may be specified in writing by the City. 

The City has detennined the Base Rentals during the Initial Tenn and any Renewal Term 
represent the fair value of the Leased Property and that the Option Price represents the fair 
purchase price of the Trustee's interest in the Leased Property. The City declares that the 
period during which the City has an option to purchase the Trustee's interest in the Leased 
Property (that is the Inaximum term of the Lease including all Renewal Terms) does not 
exceed the useful life of the Leased Property. 

During the term of the Lease, the City covenants and agrees that its responsible officer will 
include in the budget proposal submitted to the Board of Aldermen a request or requests for 
an appropriation equal to the Base Rentals and reasonably estimated Supplemental Rent to 
become due during the next succeeding Renewal Term. If sufficient funds are not 
appropriated by the Board of Aldermen for the paYlnent of the Base Rental and the 
Supplemental Rental, and funds are not otherwise legally available for such purposes, the 
City shall relinquish the Leased Property as of the expiration of the Initial Term or Renewal 
Term for which funds have been appropriated. 

The City may purchase the Trustee's interest in the Leased Property on any Optional 
PrepaYlnent Date by delivering written notice to the Trustee not less than 60 days prior to 
the Optional Prepayment Date on which the option is to be exercised. The purchase price 
to be paid by the City to exercise the option shall be an amount equal to (1) the Option Price 
applicable on such Optional Prepayment dates as indicated in the Option Price Schedule 
plus interest, premium, if any, and fees, costs, and expenses which must be paid to prepay 
the then Outstanding Certificates, less all amounts in reverses held by the Trustee under the 
Indenture which may be applied to the prepayment of such outstanding Certificates and 
such other expenses, (2) all costs of transferring the Property to the City and (3) all other 
reasonable costs and expenses incidental thereto. 

Title to the Leased Property will be held in the name of the City, subject of the Base Lease 
and the Indenture. 

The City is under no obligation to exercise its option to purchase the Trustee's interest in 
the Leased Property. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2011 

III. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS (continued) 

The Base Rental Payment and Option Price Schedule follow: 

Year Ending 
June 30, Principal Interest 

2012 $ 50,000 $ 58,410 
2013 50,000 56,160 

2014 55,000 53,735 
2015 55,000 51,068 

2016 60,000 48,400 
2017-2021 350,000 194,642 
2022-2026 450,000 98,095 

2027 105,000 5,355 

Total $ 1,175,000 $ 565,865 

H. Interfund Transfers 

The governmental-wide statelnent of activities eliminates transfers as reported within the 
segregated governmental and business-type activities columns. Only transfers between 
the two columns appear in this statement. 

Interfund transfers between funds of the City were as follows: 

Dis bursing Fund 
Library (nonmajor) 
Water and wastewater (maj or) 
Gas (major) 
Gouldlnan cemetery (nonmajor) 
Street (nonmajor) 
Cemetery (nonmajor) 
Total 

Recei ving Fund 
General (major) 
General ( maj or) 
General (major) 
Celnetery ( maj or) 
General (major) 
General (major) 

The above transfers are budgeted routine transfers. 
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$ 

$ 

Amount 
4,000 

74,480 
73,750 

314 
58,105 

1,000 
211.649 



CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2011 

III. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS (continued) 

I. Fund Equity 

Restricted Net Assets 

The following table shows the net assets restricted for debt service and for other purposes as 
shown on the Statement of Net Assets: 

Activity Re s tricte d by Amount 
Public safety Law $ 4,590 

Public works Law 59,943 

Library Contributors and law 100,976 

Cenletery Contributors and law 117,504 

Total Other Purposes $ 283,013 

Debt service-library $ 10,606 

Fund Equity Deficits 

Deficit fund balance existed at June 30, 2011 in the Street Fund. 

J. Fund Balance 

Classifications of fund balances at June 30, 2011 are as follows: 

Nons Eendab Ie Restricted Committed Assigned Unassigned Total 
Fund Balances: 

General $ 258,116 $ $ $ 64,604 $ 60,573 $ 383,293 
Street (70,209) (70,209) 

Library 100,496 100,496 
CemetelY 93,385 93,385 
Libraty Corporation 11,086 11,086 

Gouldman Cemetery 24,119 24,119 
Total $ 258,116 $ $ $ 293,690 $ (9,636) $ 542,170 

The City has not adopted a policy that sets forth a Ininilnum fund balance amount. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2011 

IV. OTHER INFORMATION 

A. Employee Pension Plan 

1. Plan Description 

The City of Montgomery participates in the Missouri Local Governlnent Employees 
Retirelnent System (LAGERS), an agent multiple-employer public employee retirelnent 
system that acts as a COlnmon investment and administrative agent for local government 
entities in Missouri. LAGERS is a defined benefit pension plan which provides 
retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. 

LAGERS was created and is governed by statute, section RSMo. 70.600 - 70.755. As 
such, it is the system's responsibility to adlninister the law in accordance with the 
expressed intent of the General Asselnbly. The plan is qualified under the Internal 
Revenue Code Section 401 a and it is tax exelnpt. 

The Missouri Local Governlnent Employees Retirelnent System issues a publicly available 
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. 
That report may be obtained by writing to LAGERS, P.O. Box 1665, Jefferson City, MO 
65102 or by calling 1-800-447-4334. 

2. Funding Status 

Full-time employees of the City of Montgomery do not contribute to the pension plan. 
The June 30th statutorily required contribution rates are 1.3% (General), and 1.4% (Police) 
of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of plan members are 
determined by the governing body of the political subdivision. The contribution 
provisions of the political subdivision are established by state statute. 

3. Annual Pension Cost (APC) and Net Pension Obligation (NPO) 

The subdivision's annual pension cost and net pension obligation for the current year were as 
follows: 

Annual required contribution 

Interest on net pension obligation 

Adjustment to annual required contribution 

Annual pension cost 

Actual contributions 

Increase (decrease) in NPO 

NPO beginning of year 

NPO end of year 
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$ 11,216 

------

$ 

11,216 

11,216 
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JUNE 30, 2011 

IV. OTHER INFORMATION (continued) 

The annual required contribution (ARC) was determined as part of the February 28, 2009 
annual actuarial valuation using the entry age actuarial cost method. The actuarial 
assumptions as of February 28, 2011 included: (a) a rate of return on the investment of 
present and future assets of 7.25% per year, compounded annually, (b) projected salary 
increases of 3.5% per year, cOlnpounded annually, attributable to inflation, (c) additional 
projected salary increases ranging from 0.00/0 to 6.0% per year, depending on age and 
division, attributable to seniorityhnerit, (d) pre-retirement mortality based on 750/0 of the 
RP-2000 Combined Health Table set back 0 years for men and 0 years for women and (e) 
post-retirement mortality based on 105% of the 1994 Group Annuity Mortality table set 
back 0 years for men and 0 years for women. The actuarial value of assets was detennined 
using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of 
investments over a five-year period. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being 
amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The mnortization 
period as of February 28, 2009 was 7 years for the General division and 7 years for the 
Police division. 

Three-Year Trend Information 

Year Annual Percentage Net 
Ended Pension ofAPC Pension 

June 30 Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation 
2009 $ 2,375 1000/0 $ 
2010 2,823 100% 
2011 11,216 1000/0 

B. Deferred Compensation Plan 

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with 
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan permits participants to defer a portion of 
participants' salary until future years. Participation in the plan is optional and participants 
elect how the salary deferrals are invested. Investlnent options include the following: 
stock funds, bond funds, and Inoney Inarket accounts, including various risk alternatives. 
The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retiren1ent, 
death, or unforeseeable elnergency. 
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IV. OTHER INFORMATION (continued) 

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased 
with those amounts and all income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are 
(until paid or made available to the employee or other beneficiary) solely the property and 
rights of the City subject only to the claims of the City's general creditors. Participants' 
rights under the plan are equal to those of a general creditor of the City in the alllOunt equal 
to the fair market value of the deferred account for each participant. 

The City has no liability for losses under the plan, but does have the duty of due care that 
would be required of an ordinary prudent investor. The City believes that it is unlikely 
that it will use the assets of the plan to satisfy the claims of general creditors in the future. 

C. Community Development Block Grant 

The City is involved in a cOlllmunity development block grant for road and sewer 
infrastructure improvements at the AFB International Facility. The total grant for this 
purpose is $200,000. As of June 30, 2011 the City had requested $67,509 of the grant 
funds. 

The City is involved in a CDBG for slum/blight rellloval of 14 vacant houses. The total 
grant for this purpose is $116,640. As of June 30, 2011, the City had requested $105,709 
of the grant funds. 

D. Risk Management 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and 
destruction of assets; errors and olllissions; and natural disasters for which the City carries 
commercial insurance. 

E. Closure of Montgomery City Sanitary Landfill 

The City had previously contracted with an operator for the operation of a municipal solid 
waste landfill. The landfill stopped accepting solid waste in 1992. As part of the 
agreement, the operator was supposed to close the landfill in accordance with various 
regulatory requirelllents. Certain assets were pledged by the contractor in the amount of 
$102,492 to guarantee its obligation. 

The landfill was not closed by the operator in accordance with requirements. Due to 
violations of the contractual agreements, the City gained control of the pledged assets. 

The project engineer estimated the costs to be incurred in each of the next fifteen (15) years 
for post-closure costs and maintenance of the closed facility is approximately $10,725, 
which totals $160,875. This amount is subject to review and adjustments annually and 
has been reflected as a liability in the government-wide statement of net assets. 
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F. Commitments and Contingencies 

1. Grants 

The City participates in a number of federal and state programs that are fully or patiially 
funded by grants received frOln other governmental units. Expenditures financed by 
grants are subject to audit by the appropriate grantor government. If expenditures are 
disallowed due to noncompliance with grant program regulations, the City may be required 
to reimburse the grantor government. As of June 30, 2011, the City believes that 
disallowed expenditures, if any, based on subsequent audits of grant expenditures will not 
have a Inaterial effect on any of the individual government funds or the overall financial 
position of the City. 

2. Contingent Liabilities 

Amounts received or receivable froin grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment 
by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, 
including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. 
The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be 
determined at this time although the government expects such amounts, if any, to be 
immaterial. 

G. Litigation 

The City currently has lawsuits pending, the outcomes of which are not known at this tiIne. 
Manageinent believes there are no outstanding matters which will have a Inaterial effect on 
the financial statements of the City. 

H. Environmental Matters 

The City is also subject to various laws and regulations with respect to environmental 
matters such as air and water quality. The effect of any future changes in environmental 
laws and/or regulations cannot be estimated. However, compliance with such changes 
may necessitate substantial expenditures. 

I. Taxes 

Assessed values are established by the County Assessor subject to review by the County's 
Board of Equalization and State Tax Commission. The assessed value for property 
located in the City as of January 1, 2010 and 2009 on which the fiscal 2010 and 2009 levies 
were based, were as follows: 
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Real estate 
Personal property 

2010 
$ 32,223,075 

6,808,760 
$ 39,031,835 

2009 
$ 31,914,494 

6,933,711 
$ 38,848,205 

The City is permitted by Missouri State Statutes, which encompass certain limitations, to 
levy taxes for various general governlnental services and in unlimited amounts for the 
payment of principal and interest on general obligation bonded debt. Property tax levies 
per $100 assessed valuation are as follows: 

Fund 
General Revenue 
Library 

J. Pledged Revenues 

$ 

$ 

2010 
0.5066 
0.3851 
0.8917 

$ 

$ 

2009 
0.4828 
0.3837 
0.8665 

The Water and Wastewater and Gas funds and the Library Corporation have pledged future 
water and wastewater and gas and Library Corporation revenues, net of specified operating 
expenses, to repay water and wastewater revenue bonds and water and wastewater and gas 
capital lease obligations and Library Corporation note payable that were issued for the 
purpose of water and wastewater improvements and equipment and gas equipment and the 
Library Corporation building. The bonds and leases are payable from water and 
wastewater and gas funds net revenues and are payable through 2027. The Library 
Corporation net revenues are payable through 2038. Annual principal and interest 
payments in 2011 on the bonds, leases and Library Corporation loan required 98% and 
140/0 of net revenues in the water and wastewater and gas funds, respectively and 830/0 of 
net revenues of the Library Corporation. The total principal and interest remaining to be 
paid on bonds, leases and loans are $4,794,148 and $2,851 for the water and wastewater 
and gas funds, respectively and $475,478 for the Library Corporation. Principal and 
interest paid for the current year were $544,413 and $11,932 for the water and wastewater 
and gas funds, respectively and $17,616 for the Library Corporation. Total water and 
wastewater, gas and Library Corporation net revenues for the current year were $555,662, 
$88,126 and $21,151 respectively. 

1(. Consideration of Subsequent Events 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through February 2, 2012, which is the date the 
financial statements are available to be issued. No events requiring disclosure were identified 
as a result of this review. 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

The following information is required and presented in accordance with Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board Statement 27, "Accounting for Pensions by State and Local 
Governmental Employers" (see Note IV -A). 

Actuarial 
Valuation 

Date 
2/28/2009 $ 

2/28/2010 
2/2812011 

Missouri Local Government Elnployees Retirement Systeln 
Schedule of Funding Progress 

(b) (b-a) 
(a) Entry Age Unfunded 

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued (a/b) 
Value Accrued Liability Funded 

of Assets Liabilit~ (UAL) Ratio 
946,490 $ 739,912 $ (206,578) 128% $ 

1,020,933 835,128 (185,805) 122% 
1,129,264 976,886 (152,378) 116% 

[(b-a)/c] 
(c) UALas a 

Annual Percentage of 
Covered Covered 
Pa~roll Payroll 

782,338 
832,562 
817,264 

NOTE: The above assets and actuarial accrued liability do not include the assets and present 
value of benefits associated with the Benefit Reserve Fund and the Casualty Reserve Fund. The 
actuarial assumptions were changed in conjunction with the February 28, 2011 annual actuarial 
valuations. For a complete description of the actuarial assumptions used in the annual valuations, 
please contact the LAGERS office in Jefferson City. 
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Other supplementary information includes financial statements and schedules not required by the 
GASB, nor a part of the basic financial statelnents, but are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis. 

Such statements and schedules include: 

Combining Staten1ents - Nonmajor governmental funds 

Statistical Data 



COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Street Fund 

Library Fund 

Cemetery Fund 

Gouldman Cemetery Fund 

Library Corporation Fund 

Special Revenue Funds 

Accounts for revenues and expenditures of 
the street department. 

Accounts for the revenue and expenditures of 
the library. 

Accounts for the operation and maintenance 
of the City-owned celnetery. Financing is 
provided primarily through fees and interest 
earned. 

Accounts for the assets that are held for the 
celnetery fund. Only interest earned on 
principal can be used by the celnetery. 

Accounts for the activities of the corporation 
which receives grants and donations for the 
library. 



CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30,2011 

Permanent Total 

Special Revenue Funds Fund Nonmajor 

Library Gouldman Gove rome ntal 

Street Library Cemetery Corporation Cemetery Fund Funds 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ (109,264) $ 95,661 $ 40,167 $ 480 $ 24,119 $ 51,163 

Certificates of deposit 53,218 53,218 

Taxes receivable 39,554 7,982 47,536 

Cash-restricted 10,606 10,606 

Total Assets $ (69,710) $ 103,643 $ 93,385 $ 11,086 $ 24,119 $ 162,523 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

LIABILITIES: 
Accounts payable $ 499 $ 989 $ $ $ $ 1,488 

Accrued expenses 237 237 
Compensated absences 1,921 1,921 

Total Liabilities 499 3,147 3,646 

FUND BALANCES: 

Assigned to library 100,496 100,496 

Assigned to cemetery 93,385 93,385 

Assigned to hbrary corporation 11,086 11,086 

Assigned to Gouldman cemetery 24,119 24,119 

Unassigned (deficit) (70,209) (70,209) 

Total Fund Balances (70,209) 100,496 93,385 11,086 24,119 158,877 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ (69,710) $ 103,643 $ 93,385 $ 11,086 $ 24,119 $ 162,523 
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

Pennanent Total 

Special Revenue Funds Fund Nonmajor 
Library Gouldman Governmental 

Street Library Cemetery Corporation Cemetery Fund Funds 

REVENUES 

Property taxes $ $ 141,895 $ $ $ $ 141,895 

Sales tax 139,779 139,779 

Railroad, utility and intangible taxes 8,823 8,823 

Intergovernmental 10,148 10,148 

Charges for services 7,684 7,684 

Licenses, permits and fees 1,225 1,225 

Interest 170 1,100 22 314 1,606 

Donations 3,378 3,378 

Miscellaneous 2,472 21,140 23,612 

Total Revenues 139,779 174,570 2,325 21,162 314 338,150 

EXPENDITURES 

Current: 

Public works 99,323 166,754 319 10 266,406 

Debt service: 

Principal 5,682 5,682 

Interest 11,934 11,934 

Capital outlay 5,054 4,518 9,572 

Total Expenditures 104,377 171,272 319 17,626 293,594 

Excess (Deficit) Revenues 

Over Expenditures 35,402 3,298 2,006 3,536 314 44,556 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Sale of property 3,150 3,150 

Transfers in 314 314 

Transfers out (58,105) (4,000) (1,000) (314) (63,419) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (58,105) (4,000) 2,464 (314) (59,955) 

Net Change in Fund Balances (22,703) (702) 4,470 3,536 (15,399) 

Fund Balances - beginning of year (47,506) 101,198 88,915 7,550 24,119 174,276 

Fund Balances - end of year $ (70,209) $ 100,496 $ 93,385 $ 11,086 $ 24,119 $ 158,877 
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STATISTICAL DATA 

(UNAUDITIED) 



Insurance 
Agency 

Scott Agency 

Date of 
Policies 

CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 

INSURANCE COVERAGE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011 

1011110 -10/1111 Scheduled Equipment 

Business Real Estate and Personal Property 

Miscellaneous Unscheduled Equipment 

Vehicle Liability Each Occurrence 

Uninsured & Underinsured Motorist 

General Aggregate Limit 

(Other Than Products-Completed Operations) 

Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit 

Personal & Advertising Injury Limit 

Each Occurrence Limit 

Damage to Premises Rented to You Limit -

(Any One Premise) 

Medical Expense Limit - (Any One Person) 

Employment Practices Occurrence Limit 

Employment Practices Aggregate Limit 

Employment Practices Deductible: $1,000 Per Claim 

Public Officials Liability Occurrence Limit 

Public Officials Liability Aggregate Limit 

Law Enforcement Liability Occurrence Limit 

Law Enforcement Liability Aggregate Limit 

Missouri Employers 711110 - 711111 
Mutal Insurance 

WORKERS COMPENSATION: 

Bodily Injury - Accident 

Bodily Injury - Disease 

CNA Surety 

CNA Surety 

Allied Insurance 

Allied Insurance 

Scott Agency 

Bodily Injury - Disease Each Occurrence 

FIDELITY BONDS: 

3/21/11 - 3/21112 Linda Block, Deputy Clerk/Treasurer 

8/30/10 - 8/30111 Brandy Atterbury, Municipal Court Clerk 

7/2611 0 - 7/26111 Jill Dunlap, City Collector 

1/27/11 - 1/27112 Steven Deves, City Administrator/Clerk 

12112110-12112/11 Library dishonesty bond 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

Amount of 
Coverage 

694,665 

12,684,600 

12,000 

2,000,000 

50,000 

4,000,000 

4,000,000 

2,000,000 

2,000,000 

100,000 

5,000 

2,000,000 

4,000,000 

2,000,000 

4,000,000 

2,000,000 

4,000,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

50,000 

25,000 

25,000 

50,000 

25,000 



Insurance 

Agency 

Scott Agency 

CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 

INSURANCE COVERAGE (CONTD) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011 

Date of Amount of 

Policies Coverage 

10/1/10 - 10/1/11 ADDITIONAL BENEFITS COVERAGE: 

Premises Boundary Increase 

Foundations, structures, below ground, 

BulId1eads, pilings, piers, wharves, docks, 

Retaining walls, underground pipes, flues, drains 

De bris Removal 

Fire Department Service Charge 

Pollutant Clean Up and Removal 

Arson, Theft, Vandalism Reward 

Backup of Sewer, Drains, and Sumps 

Business Income 

Building Ordinance or Law 

Civil Authority 

Employee Dishonesty 

Errors and Omissions 

Expediting Expense 

Extra Expense 

Fire Protection Equipment Refill 

Forgery and Alteration 

Loss Data Preparations Costs 

Lost Key Consequential Loss 

Utility Services 

Newly Acquired or Constructed Property 

Buildings and Business Personal Property 

Personal Effects and Property of Others 

Valuable Papers and Records 

(Other Than Electronic Data) 

Propeliy Off-Premises Including Transit 

Outdoor Propeliy 

Accounts Receivable 

Commandeered Propeliy 

Computers, Software and Telephone Systems 

Fine Alis at Market Value 

Money and Securities 

Outdoor Signs 

58 

1000 Feet 

Lesser of 15% 

of property value 

or $300,000 

$ 50,000 

$ 10,000 

$ 25,000 

$ 10,000 

$50,000/option to increase 

$30,000/option to increase 

$250,000/option to increase 

3 weeks 

$lO,OOO/option to increase 

$ 50,000 

$ 25,000 

$50,000/option to increase 

$ 25,000 

$5,000/option to increase 

$ 50,000 

$ 5,000 

$ 10,000 

$ 2,000,000 

$ 25,000 

$50,000/option to increase 

$ 

$ 

50,000 

50,000 

$50,000/option to increase 

$ 500,000 

$50,000/option to increase 

$ 50,000 

$lO,OOO/option to increase 

$25,000/option to increase 



SERIAL BONDS 

Payable at: 

Dated: 

Original Issue: 

UMBBank 

CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 

WATER AND WASTE WATER UTILITY 

REVENUE BONDS OUTSTANDING 

JUNE 30,2011 

DATE INTERFST 

PAYABLE RATE 

Kansas City, Missouri 

November 1,2001 

$3,500,000.00 

July 1,2011 4.000% 

July 1,2012 5.375% 

July 1,2013 5.375% 

July 1,2014 5.375% 

July 1,2015 5.375% 

July 1,2016 5.375% 

July 1,2017 5.375% 

July 1,2018 5.375% 

July 1,2019 5.000% 

July 1,2020 5.000% 

July 1,2021 5.000% 

July 1,2022 5.000% 

$ 

59 

PRINCIPAL 

AMOUNT INTEREST 

165,000 114,869 

170,000 107,000 

175,000 97,728 

180,000 88,187 

180,000 78,512 

185,000 68,703 

195,000 58,491 

200,000 47,876 

205,000 37,375 

210,000 27,000 

215,000 16,375 

220,000 5,500 

2,300,000 $ 747,616 



CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
CUSTOMERS IN SERVICE - WATER AND WASTE WATER 

JUNE 30,2011 AND 2010 

WATER UTILITY 

Number of customers served June 30,2011 

Number of customers served - June 30,2010 

INCREASE IN CUSTOMERS DURING YEAR 

WASTE WATER UTILITY 

Number of customers served - June 30,2011 

Number of customers served - June 30,2010 

INCREASE IN CUSTOMERS DURING YEAR 

60 

1,341 

1,327 

14 

1,327 

1,321 

6 
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN 

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Honorable Mayor and Members 
of the Board of Aldermen 

City of Montgomery, Missouri 

We have audited the financial statements of the goverrunental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the City of Montgomery, Missouri (the 'City'), as of and for the year 
ended. June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the City's basic fInancial 
statements and have issued our report thereon dated February 2, 2012. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with aUditing standards generally accepted iri the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained 
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control 
over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the 
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statelnents, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control 
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of perfonning their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely 
basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected 
and corrected on a timely basis. 



Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the lilnited purpose described 
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over financial reporting that Inight be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or Inaterial 
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that 
we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, we identified certain 
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting, described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and responses that we consider to be significant deficiencies in internal control over 
financial reporting (2011-1 and 2011-2). A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As pmi of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of 
material nlisstatelnent, we perfonned tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the City in a separate letter dated 
February 2,2012. 

The City's responses to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompany schedule 
of findings and responses. We did not audit the City's responses and, accordingly, we express no 
opinion on them. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of Inanagelnent, Board of Aldennen, 
others within the entity, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

~/?i-(~~ 
February 2,2012 Certified Public Accountants 
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2011-1 

Criteria: 

Condition: 

Context: 

Effect: 

Cause: 

Recommendation: 

CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

Documentation of Internal Controls 

Current auditing standards require adequate doculnentation of components 
of internal controls. This is considered to be at least a significant 
deficiency and, possibly, a material weakness. 

The City does not have written documentation of internal controls. 

During the audit, we requested to review the internal control documentation 
manual and were told no such manual exists. 

City personnel do not have a manual to which to refer to determine how 
duties are to be performed to ensure that adequate internal controls are 
followed. 

The City has developed internal controls over the years, however, they have 
not been developed in written form, most likely due to the time which 
would be involved to accurately record such controls. 

The City should establish written internal control procedures which are 
made available to all personnel. The written controls should be 
periodically reviewed to ensure they are being followed and are adequate. 

Views of Responsible Officials & Planned Corrective Actions: 
We are currently planning to develop a written manual for our employees to 
follow. This is a time-consuming task that has been hard to implelnent due 
to our small nUlnber of personnel, but one that needs to be done to ensure 
adequate internal controls are in place and followed by City personnel. 
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2011-2 

Criteria: 

Condition: 

Context: 

Effect: 

Cause: 

Recommendation: 

CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MISSOURI 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES (CONT'D) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

Accounting Personnel 

Proper segregation of duties reduces the risk of errors and fraud and is an 
important internal control. 

The City does not have enough accounting personnel to properly segregate 
duties. 

During our audit we reviewed City policies and procedures and determined 
adequate segregation of duties did not exist. 

A small number of employees perform several accounting duties. 

The City does not have the financial resources to hire enough personnel to 
segregate duties. 

The City should segregate duties wherever possible and implement other 
controls to compensate for the lack of segregation of duties.' 

Views of Responsible Officials & Planned Corrective Actions: 
The cost of hiring additional personnel is prohibitive and outweighs the 
potential benefits. We currently require two signatures on all checks and 
impoliant documents, we have persolmel coding the bills which are 
different than the personnel making the payments, we have board approval 
of all bills paid, and many other ways we attempt to Initigate potential 
risk due to our lilnited accounting personnel. 
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Honorable Mayor and Members 
of the Board of Aldennen 

City of Montgomery, Missouri 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the City of Montgomery, Missouri (the "City") for the year ended June 
30, 2011. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about 
our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and 
timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you 
dated September 12, 2011. Professional standards also require that we communicate 
to you the following information related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Findings 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. 
The significant accounting policies used by the City are described in Note I to the 
financial statements. As described in Note I to the financial stateinents, the City 
implemented GASB 54 in 2011. We noted no transactions entered into by the City 
during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All 
significant transactions have been recognized in the financial stateinents in the proper 
period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by 
Inanagement and are based on manageinent's knowledge and experience about past 
and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estiinates 
are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and 
because of the possibility that future events affecting thein Inay differ significantly 
froin those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statelnents 
were: 

Management's estimate of allowance for doubtful accounts is based on an 
analysis of the collectability of accounts. We evaluated the key factors and 
assumptions used to develop the allowance for doubtful accounts in 
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a 
whole. 



Managelnent's estimate of depreciation expense is based on experience of Inanagement's 
estimate of useful lives of assets. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to 
develop the estimate of depreciation expense in determining that it is reasonable in relation to 
the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with managelnent in performing and completing 
our audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to acculnulate all known and likely misstatelnents identified during 
the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
managelnent. Management has corrected all such Inisstatements. In addition, none of the 
Inisstatelnents detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were Inaterial, 
either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreelnent with management as a 
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that 
could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor's report. Weare pleased to repoli that 
no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated February 2, 2012. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation 
involves application of an accounting principle to the City's financial statements or a detern1ination of 
the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards 
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant 
facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 



Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City's auditors. However, 
these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses 
were not a condition to our retention. 

Current Year Comments 

Documentation of Internal Controls 

Current auditing standards consider inadequate documentation of the components of internal control 
to be at least a significant deficiency, and possibly a material weakness. Doculnentation of internal 
controls should be in writing and periodically reviewed to ensure they are being followed. 

Accounting Personnel/Segregation of Duties 

The small nUlnber of accounting and clerical personnel of the City precludes the application of internal 
accounting control procedures possible in a larger organization. 

Capitalization Policy 

The City's current capitalization policy for recording fixed assets is $500. We recommend the City 
consider raising the capitalization floor to a higher mnount, such as $5,000. 

Status of Prior Year Comments 

Documentation of Internal Controls 

Current auditing standards consider inadequate documentation of the components of internal control 
to be at least a significant deficiency, and possibly a material weakness. Documentation of internal 
controls should be in writing and periodically reviewed to ensure they are being followed. 

Status - See current year comlnents 

Accounting Personnel/Segregation of Duties 

The small number of accounting and clerical personnel of the City precludes the application of internal 
accounting control procedures possible in a larger organization. 

Status - See current year comments 



Capitalization Policy 

The City's current capitalization policy for recording fixed assets is $500. We recommended the City 
consider raising the capitalization floor to a higher amount, such as $5,000. 

Status - See current year comments 

Loan Proceeds 

During our prior year audit, we noted loan proceeds were paid directly to a seller of land to the City 
and the loan was not recorded on the City's ledger. We recommended the City record all loans on the 
general ledger . 

Status - Implemented in current year 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Aldennen and the City's management 
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

February 2,2012 Certified Public Accountants 


